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Staff Report 

Peoples Light Gas & Coke Company 

Chicago, Illinois 

October 4, 2012 

 

Subject: 

 Peoples Gas Light & Coke Company System Compliance Violation 

Introduction: 

 As authorized by Section 3 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act (“the Act”) [220 ILCS 

20/3], the Illinois Commerce Commission (“Commission”) adopted, in 83 Ill. Adm. Code 590, 

applicable federal safety standards in 49 CFR Sections 191, 192, 193, and 199 as minimum 

standards for the transportation of gas and for gas pipeline facilities.  Commission Staff 

conducted an investigation of an incident that occurred on November 13, 2011, at a residential 

house located at 6652 S. Keating Avenue, Chicago, Illinois.  Staff’s review determined that the 

0.625” polyethylene (”PE”) natural gas service line installed by Peoples Gas Light and Coke 

Company (“Peoples”) on May 7, 2007, via horizontal directional drilling1, had breached a clay 

tile sewer lateral during installation.  A section of the PE service line had been installed inside 

the sewer lateral, placing it in danger of being damaged during any subsequent sewer cleanout 

operations.  In so doing, the installation crew failed to follow Peoples’ Horizontal Directional 

Drilling Procedures, General Order 6.100 C. 5 in violation of 49 CFR § 192.13(c). 

                                                           
1
 A steerable trenchless method of installing underground pipes, conduits and cables in a 

shallow arc along a prescribed bore path by using a surface launched drilling rig, with minimal 

impact on the surrounding area. 
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Compliance Issues: 

 Staff conducted an investigation to determine the probable cause and contributory 

factors associated with the November 13, 2011, incident reported at the 6652 S. Keating site.  

As part of the investigation, an incident site inspection was performed, and data was collected 

and reviewed. 

 Staff’s investigation determined that Peoples’ natural gas facilities located inside the 

sewer lateral were damaged by a sewer auger, allowing sufficient natural gas to enter the 

house to create a hazardous atmosphere.  The spark created by an electrical switch on the 

sewer auger was determined to be the ignition source resulting in the house explosion.  

             Pressure testing was conducted on the service line at 6652 S. Keating Avenue as part of 

the investigation.  The pressure test determined that Peoples facilities were incapable of being 

pressurized due to the damage by the sewer auger.  The service line was wrapped around the 

sewer auger and contained cuts and scrapes, and was separated from both the customer meter 

set and the portion of service line supplying natural gas from the main.  That damage allowed 

pressurized natural gas to enter the structure via the sewer lateral.   

 49 CFR §192.13(c) requires an operator to maintain, modify as appropriate, and follow 

the plans, procedures, and programs that it is required to establish under this part.  

 The Peoples’ distribution crew installing the service line at 6652 S. Keating  Avenue 

failed to follow Peoples’ written procedure, General Order 6.100 C. 5, XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX  

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX. 

             The PE service line at 6652 S. Keating Avenue was located inside the sewer lateral for a 

minimum of ten feet.   XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX. 

            Peoples General Order 6.100 C. 6 requires XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX. The 

location of the service line in this instance would preclude XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX.   
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Conclusions: 

 Peoples’ failure to follow written procedures requiring excavation and inspection of 

directional drilling activities allowed for improper installation of the PE service line into the 

sewer pipe at 6652 S. Keating Avenue.  This improper installation placed the service line inside 

the sewer lateral for at least ten feet.  Subsequent sewer auguring resulted in damage to the 

gas service line.  The ignition of the gas migrating to the structure via the sewer lateral was the 

cause of the explosion.  The explosion resulted in property damage to, and personal injury of 

the occupants of, the structure. 

Recommendation: 

 Staff recommends that a Citation Order be issued to initiate a proceeding to determine 

whether Peoples has failed to comply with 49 CFR §192.13(c) and whether civil penalties should 

be assessed as allowed by Section 7 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act [220 ILCS 20/7]. 

  

 

       ______________________________ 

Prepared By: 
Darin R. Burk 
Pipeline Safety Program Manager 
Safety and Reliability Division 
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